Answers to Industry Comments/Questions on the Wallops Institutional Consolidated Contract (WICC) II Final Request for Proposals dated 8/21/2012
September 21, 2012
Note:  Missing questions from this series are anticipated to be posted by 9/24/12.
423.  SOW 2.3.7.1 The RFP requires the Offeror to maintain the installation’s Space Utilization Plan.  

Question: Please provide a copy of the current Wallops Space Utilization Plan, or any similar document which includes dimensions and layout of all facilities at WFF that the contractor will be responsible for maintaining and servicing.

  Answer:  See Answer to Question 316.  For security reasons, the current Space Utilization Plan document is available for reviewing in the CO’s office upon request.  The successful Offeror will have access to this information.

498.  The Referenced RFP Section below states:

“The Mission Suitability evaluation will take into consideration whether the resources proposed are consistent with the proposed efforts and accomplishments associated with each subfactor or whether they are overstated or understated for the effort to be accomplished as described by the Offeror and evaluated by NASA. The Offeror’s justification for the proposed resources will be considered in this evaluation. If the Offeror’s proposal demonstrates a lack of resource realism, it will be evaluated as demonstrating a lack of understanding of/or commitment to the requirements. “

         a.  Question:  How will the Government determine if the contractor’s proposed resources are overstated or understated? 

              Answer:  The Source Evaluation Board will subjectively evaluate each offerors approach to successfully accomplishing the work, and the realism of the resources proposed to successfully accomplish the approach.  The SEB will consider any supporting material in the Offeror’s Mission Suitability proposal, performance risk, and their own knowledge, experience, and judgment (including experience on past contracts) in conducting this portion of the evaluation.  Additionally, the resources identified in Mission Suitability will be evaluated for consistency with other parts of the Offeror’s proposal (e.g. Cost, Basis of Estimate).  NASA’s Independent Government Estimate may also be used for this portion of the evaluation, although that may vary based on each Offeror’s approach. 

       b.
Question:  What will be NASA’s basis for the evaluation? If the answer is, “we are going to evaluate the contractor’s approach.” 

            Answer: See answer a. above.

      c.
Question:  How does one evaluate one’s approach (as it relates to resources) when one has not experienced the use of the processes and technologies that will be proposed? Please Explain. 

             Answer: NASA is confident that the Source Evaluation Board includes the appropriate knowledge and experience (including consultants) to effectively and fairly evaluate all proposals.  If we determine that additional technical skills are needed based on unique proposal issues, additional expertise can be added to the Source Evaluation Board during the evaluation process.  Offerors are encouraged to thoroughly explain and support their technical approach and the associated resources in the proposal.  

517. Reference: SOW 2.3.8 Facilities Project Management Information System

        Question: Please provide details of the software structure of both WIMS and FPMIS. Without this information, one can only guess as to the effort it would take to integrate the two systems plus resources necessary to operate and maintain the interface.

         Answer:   Information was provided on the software structure of the WIIMS in the industry day presentation and is available in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  FPMIS is a Government Off the Shelf (GOTS) NASA developed intranet application used for tracking facilities design and 

construction project schedules and managing all project documentation.  The database containing the project information is Microsoft SQL Server 2000 and is running on a server with Windows 2003 Server service pack 2.

518. Reference: SOW 2.5 Pre-Project Planning and Budget Cost Estimating

Question: To estimate resources and types of skills it will take to support this SOW, a more de-fined meaning of your requirements for: multi program development, preliminary project management plans, requirements documentation planning are needed. Please Provide.

Answer:  We cannot provide a specific list of programs under development, preliminary project management plans, or requirements documents since they change on a regular basis.  NASA follows the latest edition of NPR 8820.2 Facility Project Requirements posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  To assist in determining resources, a list of labor categories and hours has been up-loaded to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
519. Reference: SOW 3.1 General Information

       Question: What is the limitation of contractor repair responsibility (dollars) as part of its CORE responsibility? Needed for determining resources?

        Answer:   There is no limitation on the contractor’s repair responsibility (dollars) as part of its core responsibility.  To assist in determining resources, a list of historical labor categories, hours, and ODC dollars including repair costs has been uploaded to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

520. Reference: SOW 3.1 General Information

        Question: Is PM work order limited to one item of equipment? The same goes for PT&I testing? If not, how do we determine the quantity of items of equipment for each PM?

            Answer:   See answers to Questions 144 and 189.  Attachment J-2, Appendix to Statement of Work, provides numbers of PM and PT&I work orders as well as provides an extensive equipment list.   

521.  Reference: SOW 3.1 General Information

Question: Will the new contractor be required to perform the current PMs that are contained in the NASA CMMS? If so, please provide.

             Answer:  Yes, the selected contractor will be required to perform the current PMs that are contained in the NASA CMMS.  As documented in Attachment J-2, Appendix to Statement of Work, there are approximately 3,000 PMs currently in the system and they cannot be efficiently provided; therefore, to assist in determining resources, a list of historical labor categories, hours, and ODC dollars has been uploaded to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.   
523.  Reference: Contractor Furnished Vehicles and Equipment

           Question: Has the incumbent contractor furnished vehicles and equipment over those furnished by the Government as GFP? If so, as a cost type contract, wouldn’t those contractor furnished items be purchased using Government funds? Also, why aren’t they provided as GFP in the new contract?

             Answer:  Yes, the incumbent contractor has furnished vehicles and equipment over those furnished by the Government as GFP.  Contractor owned and furnished vehicles were not paid for with Government funds.

525.  Reference: Section L.21 (b), Proposal Content and Page Limitations, (1), Proposal Component table, Final RFP pages 150 and 151.


Question:  Under the “Past Performance Volume” section of the table at the top of page 151, for (a) Information from the Offeror, the page limitations are “25 Pages from the Prime and each individual Significant Subcontractor.” Please clarify if this means 25 pages from the Prime and an additional 25 pages from each Significant Subcontractor.

             Answer:   See answer to Question 516.  RFP Section L.21 page 151 means not to exceed (NTE) 25 pages from the prime and NTE 25 pages from each significant subcontractor (e.g. NTE 25 pages for significant subcontractor #1 and NTE 25 pages for significant subcontract #2).

527.  Reference: The Government’s responses to Questions 194 and 284 about the required number of past performance questions.  The Government’s response to Question 284 seems to contradict its earlier response to Question 194. Question 194 asked, “If there is no limit as to the number of past performance contracts the Offeror is required to submit, and providing the required information on past performance projects meeting the criteria outlined above exceeds the 25-page limit, should the Offeror limit its past performance information only to those projects considered to be most relevant that fit into the 25-page limit?” The Government’s response was “Yes,” indicating that Offerors are not required to furnish past performance information for all of their most recent contracts for similar efforts. Question 284 asked, “Please confirm that the Offeror and major subcontractors can decide which past performance citations they wish to include as long as they fit within the specified guidelines.” The Government’s response was “No, provision L.25 requires the Offeror (including significant subcontractors) to submit past performance information for ALL relevant contracts that meet the minimum size and recency criteria in the RFP.”  Please clarify whether Offerors are indeed required to submit past performance information for ALL relevant contracts that meet the minimum size and recency criteria in the RFP or whether—to meet the 25-page limit requirements—Offerors are allowed to limit their past performance contracts to only those that they consider to be most relevant to the solicitation?

 
Answer:  Both.  Submit all relevant contracts but don’t exceed the 25-page limitation.

528.
Reference:  Section L.25 (a), Information from the Offeror, RFP pages 173 and 174.  We are confused by the Government’s use of “cost/fee incurred” in various places in the DRFP and are not sure if the term simply refers to “value.” Here are some examples. On page 173, the RFP states, “Prime Offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $4,000,000 that your company has had within the last 5 years of the RFP release date.” On page 174, the RFP states:  “The current contract expenditures incurred to date, the date in which the expenditures have been incurred through, and the Average Annual Cost/Fee Incurred to Date. For example (note, these example numbers may not relate to this specific procurement):  A current five year contract that you are performing has a total estimated value of $100,000,000. As of the latest cost report which reflected cost/fee through the first 2 years and 4 months of performance, the total amount of cost/fee incurred by the Offeror over the duration of the contract was $43,500,000.  In this example, an Offeror would provide the following:

Current Contract Expenditures incurred to Date: $43,500,000.  Date in which Expenditures have been incurred through: Insert Date of cost report that indicated cost/fee total of $43,500,000 after 2 years and 4 months of performance. Average Annual Cost/Fee Incurred to Date: $18,669,528 ($43,500,000/2.33 years)”
 
Question: Please clarify what the Government means by “cost/fee incurred” in the usages above. Could the term be replaced by the word “value”?

Answer:  The term incurred cost/fee to date means actual costs and fee incurred and invoiced under the contract.  Contract “value” means the total overall contract estimated cost and fee.

529.
Reference:  Section L.25 (a), Information from the Offeror, RFP page 175, and Section M.6, Past Performance Evaluation Factor, DRFP page 189


Question: Page 175 (L) states, “Identify and explain major technical problems and how they were overcome. List any major deviations or waivers to technical requirements that were granted by the customer.” Page 189 (M) states, “The Government will consider an Offeror’s explanation of any problems encountered on any identified contracts, and any corrective actions taken by the Offeror.”  Would the Government like Offerors to combine the Section M evaluation factor (an “explanation of any problems encountered”) with the Section L requirement (“identify and explain major technical problems”) and address both in the same section of the Past Performance proposal?


 Answer:  Section M advises Offerors that the Government will evaluate “any problems encountered on any identified contracts and any corrective actions taken by the Offerors.”  The term “any” indicates that major technical problems, as well as other problems such as schedule, cost, management, etc. will be evaluated.

530.
Reference:  Section L.21 (a), Proposal Format and Organization, (5), Final RFP page 150


Question:  The last sentence in paragraph (5) states, “Each volume of the proposal shall specify the relevant evaluation criteria being addressed, if appropriate.” However, the criteria for each volume in Section M are not broken out by section numbers.

For each volume, please explain how the Government would like Offerors to specify the evaluation criteria in our responses. Should we simply call out “M.4, M.5, M.6, etc.” in the section titles in our responses?


 Answer:  The Offeror is responsible for addressing all areas of Section L only in their proposal.  Section M specifies evaluation criteria that the Government will use to evaluate the information requested in Section L.
531.
Reference:  Solicitation number found on FBO.gov and GSFC Business Opportunities websites, and solicitation number found on final solicitation documents issued Aug. 21, 2012


Question:  The solicitation number on the FBO.gov entry, as well as the Goddard Space Flight Center Business Opportunity page, for this procurement is: NNG11367416R. However, the solicitation number found on all final documents issued on Aug. 21, 2012, found on both FBO.gov and the GSFC Business Opportunities page is: NNG12367416R.  Can the Government please clarify which solicitation number is correct for this procurement?


 Answer:  The correct solicitation number is NNG12367416R.


532.
Reference:  Exhibit 16, PPQ, first page and Section L.25.b, pages 175-176


Question:   There is statement at the bottom of the PPQ that states” Return this questionnaire to by TBD.” This in conflict with the direction on page 176 to return the PPQ by no later than the date in Block 9 of the SF33. Is the Offeror supposed to change the TBD to the date on the PPQ?


  Answer:  Thank you for identifying this inconsistency.  A revised past performance questionnaire will be uploaded with the date due date of October 23, 2012 to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006

533.
Reference:  RFP, Section L; page 162; Paragraph L.23.3 Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions & Section H; page 61; Paragraph H.17 Critical Positions & Qualifications.


Question:  Section L requires Offerors to “describe their critical positions required to meet the requirements of the contract. The descriptions shall include rationale for identifying these positions as critical.” Section H.17 states: “The Critical Positions and Qualifications listed in Attachment J-11 are considered essential to the work being performed under this contract. The Contractor’s critical personnel assigned to these positions shall satisfy, at a minimum, the applicable labor category qualifications, both education and experience, as required in Attachment J-11 during the performance of the contract.” It does not appear that Attachment J-11 was included with the RFP and accompanying documents. Will the Government please direct Offerors on where to find Attachment J-11 and if the Government is providing a list of critical positions and qualifications for this contract?


 Answer:  See answer to Question 506.  The critical position list is to be furnished by the Offeror by generating and submitting the Offeror identified critical positions and qualifications,  which will ultimately be incorporated to the contract as Attachment J-11.  Clause H.17 applies after contract award.

534.
Reference:   Attachment J-1, SOW; page 57; paragraph 3.7.4 Wastewater (Sewage and Storm Water) Systems.


Question: The Introduction to Paragraph 3.7.4 states: “the wastewater system includes the wastewater treatment plant and distribution system.” Later, Requirement a and b of Paragraph 3.7.4 reference the “wastewater treatment plants.” Will the Government please clarify the number of wastewater treatment plants that Offerors are required to operate and maintain in accordance with SOW 3.7.4?

  Answer:  There is currently only one wastewater treatment plant.  SOW Section 3.7.4 will be amended on or by September 20, 2012 to revise “wasterwater treatment plants” to “wastewater treatment plant.”  Attachment J-2 Appendix to Statement of Work Section 3.7.4 Wastewater (Sewage and Storm Water) Systems, Core Data (NASA), Wastewater Treatment Plant will also be amended to from 1 +/- 1 to 1.  The amendment is anticipated to be posted to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006 on or about September 24, 2012.

535.
Reference:  RFP, Section L; page 152; paragraph L.22 Offer Volume.


Question:  Section L requires that “All SF33s require original signatures.” Are Offerors permitted to submit color photocopies of the SF33s in the 7 hard copies of Volume I: Offer Volume as long as the Volume I: Offer Volume Original SF33s have original signatures? If not, does the Government expect all SF33s required in the Volume I: Offer Volume Original proposal and all 7 hard copies have original signatures? 


 Answer:  The requirement is for 1 Original and 7 hard copies per RFP Section L.22 Offer Volume.  Only the original SF33 requires an original signature.

536.
Reference:  Attachment J-1, SOW; page 164; paragraph 14.1 Mail Services.


Question:  The Requirement for Mail Services states: “The Contractor shall safely store all incoming and outgoing accountable, classified, sensitive but unclassified (SBU), and special services mail in a safe located in the WMSC when it cannot be delivered to the USPS or the recipient.” Later in that section, Offerors are directed to store mail in “the safe located in the Wallops Duplicating Facility.”

Will the Government please clarify if the Government will control the safe in the WMSC and/or the Duplicating Facility, meaning that contractor employees will not know the combinations? Will contractor employees turn over items to WMSC for storage? 


  Answer:  The Contractor personnel will control access to both safes, one safe is in the WMSC for incoming and outgoing accountable, classified, sensitive but unclassified (SBU), and special services mail when it cannot be delivered to the USPS or when mail that does not contain an identifiable addressee name, office, or organization code to determine the appropriate recipient/addressee/destination.  If an inner envelop is found to be marked “Secret” or “Classified”, then the inner envelop shall be delivered to the NASA/Wallops/Security Office immediately.  The other safe in the Wallops Duplicating Facility shall be used to store mail marked “Secret” or “Classified” that cannot be delivered immediately to the NASA/Wallops Security Office.  The WICC II Contractor will place the items in the appropriate safe as indicated above.

537.
Reference:  Exhibit 16 – Past Performance Questionnaire Instructions; Section L.25 (a), Information from the Offeror, RFP page 173; and Section M.6, Past Performance Evaluation Factor, RFP page 188.


Question:  The instructions on the first page of Exhibit 16 (PPQ) state, “Section V evaluates the contractor’s technical, schedule, and cost performance and management.  (Additional pages may be used for comments if desired).  It is very important to keep in mind that only performance in the past 3 years is relevant.” However, in the final RFP, in Sections L and M, the Government changed the time frame for recent Past Performance contracts from 3 years to 5 years. For example, Section M states, “A ‘recent’ contract is a contract that is ongoing or completed less than 5 years prior to the issuance of this RFP. Contracts completed more than 5 years prior to issuance of this RFP will not be considered recent and will not be considered or evaluated.”

Would the Government also revise the PPQ instructions to state “5 years” for consistency with the “recent” requirement in Sections L and M?


 Answer:  Yes, Exhibit 16 should state 5 years is relevant versus 3 years and Exhibit 16 will be revised and an amendment is anticipated to be posted to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006 on or about September 24, 2012.

538.   Reference:  Section L.25 (a), Information from the Offeror, RFP pages 173 and 174; Section L.25 (b), Prior Customer Evaluations (Past Performance Questionnaires), RFP pages 175 and 176; and Section M.6, Past Performance Evaluation Factor, RFP page 189.

Question: Section L.25 (a) states, “If applicable, Offerors may provide the experience or past performance of a parent or affiliated or predecessor company to an Offeror (including a parent or affiliated company that is being otherwise proposed as a subcontractor on this effort) where the firm’s proposal demonstrates that the resources of the parent or affiliate or predecessor will affect the performance of the Offeror.” Section M.6 says, “As part of the past performance evaluation, the Government may attribute the experience or past performance of a parent or affiliated or predecessor company (including a parent or affiliated company that is being otherwise proposed as a subcontractor on this effort) to the proposed prime contractor and/or significant subcontractor(s) where the proposal demonstrates that the resources of the parent or affiliate or predecessor company will affect the performance of the proposed prime contractor and/or significant subcontractor(s).” Section L.25 (b) states, “For proposed significant subcontractor(s), references shall concern only work performed by the subcontractor’s business entity that will perform the work under this contract, if awarded.” 

The referenced statement from Section L.25 (a) refers only to Offerors and makes no mention of significant subcontractors, while the referenced statement from Section M.6 includes both Offerors and significant subcontractors and says that both are allowed to use the relevant experience or past performance of a parent or affiliated or predecessor company. However, the referenced statement from Section L.25 (b) appears to contradict the Section M.6 statement and says that significant subcontractors are NOT allowed to use the experience or past performance of a parent or affiliated or predecessor company. Would the Government please clarify whether or not significant subcontractors are permitted to use the relevant experience or past performance of a parent or affiliated or predecessor company?

Answer:   Yes, per RFP Section M.6, the Government will attribute the experience or past performance of a parent or affiliated or predecessor company (including a parent or affiliated  predecessor company that is being otherwise proposed as a subcontractor on this effort) to the proposed prime contractor and/or significant subcontractor.  Moreover, as noted in Section M.6, the term “Offeror” refers to a prime contractor and its significant subcontractors.
539.  Reference: GSA Vehicles

        Question: Will NASA authorize the use of GSA Vehicles on the Wallops contract?

         Answer:  The Government does not intend on authorizing the use of GSA vehicles as it is our understanding that GSA does not authorize direct purchase/lease of GSA vehicles by contractors nor does the Government plan on leasing or buying vehicles and providing them as Government Property.

540.  Reference: NASA Library Material

        Question: Does the historical manpower shown for 2011 include necessary management and administration personnel to support task order work?

          Answer:  Historical management and administration personnel are not provided in the technical library as reporting for these labor categories vary per accounting system.
541.  Reference: Section L, paragraph 21(b) Proposal Content and Page Limitations, sub-paragraph (1) the table, Proposal Component Past Performance Volume, Page Limitations that states: “25 Pages from the Prime and each individual Significant Subcontractor”. We are con-fused about the page count.

         Question: Please clarify whether the Prime has 25 pages to work with and then each Significant Subcontractor also has an additional and separate 25 pages to work with. For example, a Prime has 2 Significant Subcontractors: (A) does the prime have 25 pages, Significant Subcontractor 1 have 25 pages in addition to the Prime, and Subcontractor 2 have 25 more to work with? 0r (B) is the 25 page limitation inclusive of the Prime and all significant subcontractors (i.e. a total of 25 pages for prime and subs)?

         Answer:  See responses to Questions 516 and 525.  RFP Section L.21 page 151 means not to exceed (NTE) 25 pages from the prime and NTE 25 pages from each significant subcontractor (e.g. NTE 25 pages for significant subcontractor #1 and NTE 25 pages for significant subcontract #2).

542.
Reference:   SOW 7.0, Chemical and Biological Laboratory.  The RFP provides J2 values (estimated number of tests) for SOW 7 Chemical and Biological Lab Support Services.  

             Question:  Of the tests noted for regulatory support, which analyses methods are currently being employed for each respective test?  Please cite the test and method.

             Answer: Information requested has been posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

543.
Reference:   SOW 7.0, Chemical and Biological Laboratory

            Question: Of the tests and analyses noted, which ones are currently being out-sourced?

            Answer:  Information requested has been posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
544.
Reference:  SOW 7.1, Regulatory Support- Under SOW 7, 7.1 Regulatory Support, the requirement to conduct tests for lab/carrier gases (Nitrogen, Helium, Oxygen, etc), is listed.

            Question:  Is this work performed by the WFF lab and if so, what are these gases being tested for?  What is the analytical method being employed?

            Answer:  Yes the work is performed by the WFF lab.  They are testing for particulates, condensable hydrocarbons, volatile hydrocarbons, and dewpoint.  Analytical method has been posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
545.  Reference:  SOW 7.0, Chemical and Biological Laboratory


            Question:  Of the SOW 7 laboratory equipment listed in the supplemental J2 numbers, which items/equipment require on-going regulatory driven (DEQ, VELAP, VDH) calibration certifications?

             Answer:  Information requested has been posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
547.  Reference:  SOW 3.2.2, CMMS

           Question:   Is the Contractor allowed to use a Contractor-provided version of Maximo?

            Answer:  No, the Contractor shall use the Government-provided Maximo as required per SOW 3.2.2, CMMS.

548.  Reference:  SOW 3.2.2, CMMS

           Question: Will the Contractor be allowed to update the Government’s Maximo system for WICC II requirements with a data feed from the Contractor-provided Maximo system?

              Answer:  No, the Contractor will not be allowed to update the Government’s Maximo system with a data feed from a Contractor-provided Maximo system as Maximo can only receive manual inputs from the Contractor.   Also see answer to Question 416.a.

549.  Reference:  SOW 3.2.2, CMMS

           Question:  Please describe the segregation of the Government’s Maximo system. We need to know, for reporting / tracking purposes how is information entered by Brady-Fluor (Prime Contractor) segregated from information put in by the Government or by other third party contractors.

             Answer:  No one else will be inputting information into Maximo other than the WICC II Contractor.

550.  Reference:  SOW 3.9, Pest/Nuisance Management and Animal Control (IDIQ)

          Question:  Please provide historical data and/or an average number of trouble calls for pest control for a contract year.

            Answer:  This information can be found in the last three contract years of IDIQ tasks posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html

551.  Reference:  SOW 3.5.4, Elevators

           Question:   Please provide the required certification schedule and scope for the existing site elevators.

             Answer:  All elevators are required to be certified annually as stated in SOW 3.5.4 (d).  The scope of the certification is per the referenced standards in the SOW which are the NASA Safety Standard For Lifting Devices and Equipment, NASA-STD 8719.9, manufacturers’ recommendations, National Consensus Standards For Elevators and OSHA Safety Standards.  Generally, the scope includes operational testing of the limits on start and stop to the required tolerances, and certifications that the hydraulics and control panels are in good working condition.

552.  Reference:  Exemption from State and Local Taxes - The RFP contains FAR 52.229-3 which states that Offerors should include taxes in pricing for fixed price orders, but there is no guidance in the RFP or the Q&A on whether to include taxes for the cost reimbursable estimates to establish target costs.  In addition, FAR 29.303(b) provides "When purchases are not made by the Government itself, but by a prime contractor or by a subcontractor under a prime contract, the right to an exemption of the transaction from a sales or use tax may not rest on the Government's immunity from direct taxation by States and localities. It may rest instead on provisions of the particular State or local law involved, or, in some cases, the transaction may not in fact be expressly exempt from the tax...." 

           Question: Please clarify whether exemption from state and local taxes is anticipated?  

           Answer:  It is not anticipated that the WICC II contractor will be exempt from state and local taxes.

553.  Reference:   Past Performance section (Factor 4) on page 175


            Question:  The RFP requests our safety performance information, specifically the OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses documentation for the past 3 years for each project.  Due to the depth of detail required for compliance, please confirm that these pages are excluded from the Factor 4 page count limit.

             Answer:  No.  In accordance with RFP Section L.21(b), this information is not excluded from the 25 page limit.

554.  Reference:  Section L.23 Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions, Subfactor B—Contract Management Approach, Phase-In Plan


            Question: On Day 61 of contract (1st day post transition), please confirm if the incoming contractor will receive the outgoing contractor’s stock, to include Contractor-acquired and Government-owned equipment.

             Answer:  All stock that has been billed to the Government will be available for the incoming contractor.  Equipment available to the incoming contractor is listed in Attachment J-3, Installation Accountable Government Property (IAGP).

555.  Reference:   Section L.23 Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions, Subfactor B—Contract Management Approach, Phase-In Plan


         Question: Will the new contractor have the opportunity on Day 61 (1st day post transition), to re-negotiate/review pricing, T's and C's scope, schedule, and/or TOPR contents for Carry-over task orders prior to assuming this work?

            Answer:  No.  There will be no carry-over to the new contract.  All tasks will have been completed by the WICC I contractor.

556.
Reference:   Section L.23 Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions, Subfactor B—Contract Management Approach, Phase-In Plan


           Question: Will NASA issue task orders for the incoming contractor to perform before Day 61 (1st day post transition).

             Answer:  No.  NASA will not issue task orders for the incoming contractor to perform before Day 61.  The effective date of the WICC II contract is on day 61 which is when task orders will be issued.  However, NASA will provide sample task orders that are anticipated to be issued on day 61 for work that is of an “on-going” nature such as custodial services so that the contractor will be prepared to begin work as soon as the task order is issued.

557.  Reference:   SOW 15.6.2 Page 181, Receipt of Gov’t items


           a. Question:  This section makes reference to GPR 4520.2 and Work Instruction 270-WI-4520.2.2. In turn GPR 5330.1 is referred to which concerns EEE. The 270-WI-5330.0.1I covers the steps for incoming EEE. We are unable to locate GPR 5330.1.  

                Answer:   GPR 5330.1 has been posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  Please note, this document was not initially provided because the WICC II Contractor will not be performing inspection testing of the Electrical, Electronic, and Electromechanical (EEE) parts received for use in space systems under the Government’s Quality Management System.

          b. Question: Are the criteria for receiving these parts established by a Contractor Quality Engineer or equivalent, or a NASA employee? 

              Answer:  The criteria are established by a NASA employee.

          c. Question: Are special “risks” identified in the form? 

              Answer:  Yes, any special “risks” are identified.

558.  Reference:   Appendix to SOW 15.6 Receiving-The Appendix to the SOW indicates about 150 trucks/day will pass through. 

          a. Question: How many of these go through 16W and are subject to RITS as “QMS Material”? 

              Answer:  Building 16W is the receiving building at the Goddard Space Flight Center in Greenbelt, MD.   Receiving at Wallops Flight Facility is in building F-19.  Please review Attachment J2, Appendix to Statement of Work.  It is not our intent for the quantity to indicate 150 trucks/day.  Attachment J2, 15.6 RECEIVING, states 3,000 +/- 500 per year which at 52 weeks per year and 5 normal work days per week would be at maximum 13.5 trucks per day.  Entire trucks would not be subject to RITS as “QMS Material” but pieces.  There are 5 or fewer pieces per month that are subject to RITS.

          b. Question: Do materials that go direct to other facilities subject to inspection or only those designated as “QMS Material”?

               Answer:    No.  Materials that go direct to other facilities that are listed in SOW 15.6 which are bulk commodities, direct deliveries specified by contracts, and Class 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 explosives, as defined in CFR 49 172.101, are not subject to inspection by the WICC contractor.

559.
Reference:  WICC II Surveillance Plan Section IV E


           Question: Will SMA at Goddard conduct regular audits of the Contractor similar to an NASA IFO audit? Are there SMA personnel located at WFF? 

            Answer:  We believe you are referring to the SMA at Goddard which is the Safety and Mission Assurance Organization, NASA Code 300.  No, NASA Code 300 does not conduct regular audits of the WICC contractor.  However, the Wallops Safety Office, NASA Code 800, does conduct regular audits of the WICC contractor.  There are currently no SMA personnel located at WFF.

560.  Reference:   Attachment J-2; Section 12.2.5 Telecommunications (Data, Video, Telephone) Cable Plant System Support; Core Data (NASA); Database maintenance, Documentation, and Engineering drawings:  300 /yr  +/- 50 hr/yr


           a. Question: What is intended unit of measure per year indicated for this workload data?  The range of +/- 50 hr/yr would imply the base quantity is 300 hours / year.  

               Answer:  The correct unit of measure of the workload data is occurrences.  RFP Attachment J-2 will be amended to remove “hrs”.   It is anticipated the amendment will be posted to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006 on or about September 24, 2012.  

           b. Question:   Is this correct?  If not, please provide correct unit of measure for the base quantity of 300 /yr.

                Answer:   See answer to a. above.

562.  Reference:   Exhibit 16 - Past Performance Questionnaire Instructions-This documents states “Section V evaluates the contractor’s technical, schedule, and cost performance and management.  (Additional pages may be used for comments if desired).  It is very important to keep in mind that only performance in the past 3 years is relevant.”  However, Section L.25, Past Performance Volume, Paragraph (a) states “Prime Offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $4,000,000 that your company has had within the last 5 years of the RFP release date.”   

            Question: Please correct Exhibit 16 to match with Section L.25.

            Answer:  See answer to Question 537.  RFP Exhibit 16 will be corrected by an amendment to indicate only performance in the past 5 years is relevant.   The amendment is anticipated to be posted to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006 on or about September 24, 2012.
563.  Reference:   Attachment J-11


           Question: Please provide Attachment J-11 for the Offeror’s reference and use.

           Answer:  See answer to Question 506.  The Critical Positions and Qualifications are to be proposed by the Offeror.

564.  Reference:  SOW 11.0 Emergency Services- In the IAGP, Attachment J-3, there are no line items for fire hoses, nozzles, rakes or firefighting equipment.

            Question:  Is this equipment contractor owned, and should be contractor supplied?

             Answer:  See answer to Question 273.  It will be the Contractor’s responsibility to provide required equipment and items not in included in Attachment J-3.   Any supplies or gear on hand on day one of the contract will be provided to the Contractor.  For SOW 11, lists of supplies (with inventory dates) have been placed in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

565.  Section L.25 of NNG12367416R provides guidance on Past Performance information to be provided for evaluation:

         a. Question:  – Section L.25 (a) discusses Past performance “within the last 5 years.”  Exhibit 16, Section V, states only “past performance in the past 3 years” is relevant.  How will you resolve this discrepancy? (We assume this a simple administrative fix.)

            Answer:  Yes.  See answer to Question 537.  Exhibit 16 should state 5 years is relevant versus 3 years and an amendment to the RFP with a revised Exhibit 16 is anticipated to be posted to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006 on or about September 24, 2012.
         b. Question:   – Two of our Federal customers, where we have recent Past Performance, have indicated they will no longer respond to Past Performance Questionnaires.  Specifically for the Corps of Engineers, we received an e-mail yesterday stating:  “we’ve been guided by our District not to complete past performance questionnaires, as CCASS has the vetted past performance reviews that have been signed up through the proper chain.”  Will the SEB be using CCASS and PPIRS for Past Performance evaluations when the customer does not return the Questionnaire?

             Answer:  We will be checking PPIRs for past performance information as one of the methods available as identified in RFP Section M.6 PAST PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FACTOR. 

567.  Question:  What is the limit of liability on PM Work Orders?

          Answer:  There is no limitation of liability on PM Work Orders.  See answer to Question 519 which applies to PM work orders also.

568.  Question:  What is the limit of liability on PT&I Tests?
         Answer:  There is no limitation of liability on PT&I Tests.  See answer to Question 519 which applies to PT&I Tests also.

569.  Question: What is the limit of liability on repairs?


         Answer:  There is no limitation of liability on repairs.   See answer to Question 519.

570.  Reference SOW 8.0, Environmental Services

          a. Question:   What is the current schedule for testing at the old Aviation Fuel Tank Farm site and what constituents are being monitored and analyzed?

              Answer:  Currently there is annual sampling for Benzene, Toluene, Ethyl Benzene or Xylenes (BTEX) in one monitoring well and lead in up to six monitoring wells, along with sampling the Town of Chincoteague Drinking Water Wells 3B, 3C and 7B.

          b. Question: Is a report required to be filed with the Town of Chicoteague regarding the status of the groundwater plume?
              Answer:  In accordance with the Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Addendums No. 3 and No. 4, NASA is required to collect water samples from the Town of Chincoteague (TOC) Drinking Water Wells 3B, 3C and 7B.  The Government will coordinate the sampling activities with the TOC and provide a courtesy copy of the data to the TOC.

         c. Question: Is this sampling, monitoring, and analysis considered core work or IDIQ work?

             Answer:  The sampling, monitoring and analysis are performed as IDIQ work.

         d. Question: If so, are the samples being analyzed on-site or is it required that those samples be sent to an outside lab?

              Answer:  Currently, there is no on-site analytical capability for Benzene, Toluene, Ethyl Benzene or Xylenes (BTEX) to meet the Corrective Action Plan (CAP) requirements or Drinking Water Standards. All samples are sent off-site.

571.  Reference: SOW, Section 12.1 Telecommunications and Engineering Services Information. Currently, WFF telecommunications support is provided by multiple contracts.  Some of these contracts will continue to provide portions of the overall telecommunications support, and the WICC Contractor may be required to coordinate work with other Government contractors.

          Question: Which contracts will continue provide support and which portions of the telecommunications will be supports by the existing contracts?

          Answer: SOW 12.1, paragraphs 4, 8, 9 and 10 identify what services are provided by WICC II and what services are provided by other contractors.

 572.  Reference: Cost Volume L.24 Section 2 (g) Core Services Source of Personnel – Exhibit 3.  The RFP indicates we are to identify the how many personnel are to be obtained from within the company, obtained from the incumbent workforce and how many will be newly hired. In order to complete Exhibit 3 information regarding the incumbent workforce is needed.

           Question: Can a roster be provided that identifies the number of personnel currently employed by the incumbent contractor by labor position and labor category?

           Answer:  No, a roster cannot be provided.  Potential Offerors are encouraged to obtain information directly from incumbents.  See answer to Question 160.  We have provided a list of labor categories in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html. 

573.  Reference:  Cost Volume L.24 Section 2.(o) Fringe Benefits Exhibits – Exhibit 10 requests a breakdown by fringe element that identifies the company cost per hour, along with an itemization of the benefits that require employee contributions as percentage of the total cost of the benefit. In order to accurately determine the cost of benefits information regarding the demographics of the current incumbent workforce is required. 
Question: Can the government provide a roster of the incumbent workforce that provides sufficient demographics, such as number of employees by age group along with the average number of employees receiving benefits and their status: Employee Only, Employee with Spouse, Employee Children, Family 

             Answer:  The roster of the incumbent workforce is Contractor owned, not Government owned information.  Therefore, the Government cannot provide this information.  An Offeror must provide this information based on their specific Technical Approach for meeting the SOW requirements and any information obtained about the incumbent workforce. 

574.  Reference:  SOW 8 Hazardous Waste Disposal Agreement, Section 8.2.6.b.  This section states that the contractor is to: “Arrange for disposal of hazardous waste, non-usable hazardous material, and regulated wastes at facilities pre-approved by the CO or designee. The Contractor shall provide to NASA all services, materials, licenses and equipment necessary for final disposition of hazardous waste, non-usable hazardous material and regulated wastes including sampling, analysis, packaging, marking, labeling, manifesting, transportation, treatment, interim storage, disposal, and destruction”. 

          a. Question: The above excerpt requires pre-approval from the NASA CO regarding selection of the WICC contractor’s Hazardous Waste Disposal vendor.  How is an offerer to prepare a Hazardous Waste disposal cost estimate from a select vendor during the proposal phase without obtaining pre-approval from the WICC CO? 

 
Answer:  A Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facility (TSDF) could be “permitted” but still have violations or enforcement actions against it.  That is why the CO or designee pre-approves those sites.  If an Offeror wants to use a TSDF for its proposal, it can go to the EPA link at http://www.epa-echo.gov/echo/ click on the hazardous waste search button, and type in the EPA ID No. of the facility in question.  This will give the compliance history of the facility, number of NOV’s, number of quarters out of compliance, any significant violations, and any current enforcement actions.  The Offeror should choose a facility with a clean compliance record, or one that has no significant violations to ensure that their selected TSDF will be approved by the CO or designee.

        b. Question:  The statement does not mention medical wastes (red-bag). Are those wastes a part of the requirement?  If not, how are medical wastes disposed of at the facility?

            Answer:   Most medical waste is not deemed hazardous but is regulated.  There may be medical waste that is hazardous (such as nitroglycerine) which would be covered by this requirement.  Per SOW 9.1, the WICC II Contractor is responsible for the operation of the health unit, this would include disposal of medical wastes, and complying with “all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, Presidential Executive orders, the most current version of NASA Procedures and Guidelines, the most current version of GSFC Policy Directives and, the most current version of GSFC Procedures and Guidelines including The Privacy Act of 1974, Health Information Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA), Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulations.”  By law, all regulated medical waste shall be disposed of by a permitted medical waste disposal company.

575.  RFP Section L.22, on page 152, Offer Volume, subsection (a) (1), states: “It is requested

that Offerors indicate, in Block 12 of the SF 33, a proposal validity period of 240 days”.

However, the Final RFP Cover Letter confirms proposals are due October 23, 2012 and

that Phase-in starts December 1, 2013.

        Question:  Does the Government intend to award within the 240-day validity period, as the validity date will expire long before the start of Phase-in?

        Answer:  The Government will request extensions to the 240-day validity period, if necessary, prior to the current validity period end date.  

576.  Reference:  The SF33 identifies a proposal due date of October 23, 2012. In previous meetings, there was an indication that the Past Performance Volume may be due prior to the remaining volumes.

         Question:  Are all volumes due on October 23, 2012?

         Answer:  All volumes are due no later than October 23, 2012.
577. Reference:  RFP Statement of Work (SOW) Attachment JI, on page 64, Section 4.2 Construction, Requirement paragraph a., states “If design/build is requested, designs (plans, estimates and specifications) provided by the Contractor shall be developed by qualified designers as per Section 2.6.1 and documentation shall conform to requirements of Section 2.2.3”. 

         Comment:  The referenced sections 2.2.3 and 2.6.1 do not exist.   Please provide the correct references.

          Answer:  The correct reference for Section 2.2.3 is 2.3.3.  The correct reference for Section 2.6.1 is 2.8.1.  The Statement of Work will be revised to correct the references and an amendment will be issued to the solicitation to incorporate the revised Attachment J-1 Statement of Work and is anticipated to be posted to http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006 on or about September 24, 2012.

578. Reference:  RFP Statement of Work (SOW) Attachment J-1, on page 131, Section 11.2, Emergency Facilities and Equipment, the Requirement states, “At least one ambulance will be in service at all times”.

          Question:  Is it the Government’s intent that the Contractor shall staff one ambulance at each Fire Station (a total of two ambulances), or is the requirement for only one single ambulance, to be available on a 24/7 basis?
          Answer:  Per SOW Section 11.2, “Because of the distance between the two facilities, it is necessary to provide equipment at each station capable of handling any emergency response scenario.”  It is the Government’s intent that the Contractor staff one ambulance at each 
Fire Station (a total of two ambulances).  

579.  Reference:   RFP Statement of Work (SOW) Attachment J-1, on page 131, Section 11.2, Emergency Facilities and Equipment, the Requirement states, “Sufficient Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) vehicles, per the requirements of NFPA 403, shall be in service for all scheduled WFF based aircraft”.  The requirement is for scheduled flights.

        a. Question:  Is it the Government’s intent that the ARFF vehicles do not have to be staffed 24/7?

            Answer:  No, that is not the Government’s intent.  Per SOW Section 11.2, “Because of the distance between the two facilities, it is necessary to provide equipment at each station capable of handling any emergency response scenario.”  On the Main Base, there is always the potential for aircraft emergency landings which by nature can be unscheduled aircraft.  Therefore, the Contractor must be able to respond all times with a minimum of one ARFF vehicle.  The Contractor must be able to respond with ARFF vehicles per the requirements of NFPA 403 when there are scheduled landings, which may be more than one ARFF vehicle.
        b. Question:   If so, is the normal daily flying window seven days a week (0700-1700 hrs)?

            Answer:  No.  See answer to Question a. above.

580.  Reference:  RFP Statement of Work (SOW) Attachment J1, on page 133, Section 11.7.2, Communications Control Center Miscellaneous, the Standard states “Communications Control Center is available for emergency response services”. However, RFP Section 11.0 Emergency Services does not detail any notification method and dispatching requirements for 911 calls.

         a. Comment:  Please provide clarification of the notification method and dispatching requirements for the Fire Department and Emergency Services.

             Response:  Per SOW 1.2.2 Work Reception and Control, the work control process shall provide a centralized point of contact 24 hours per day, 7 days a week for work reception, customer interface, work status and all other inquiries related to institutional services at WFF including Protective Services with the exception of 911 emergency calls.  Also see answers to Questions 333 and 429.  All emergency calls and dispatches will be handled by the Protective Services contractor.  

         b. Question:   Is the Fire Department and Emergency Services called out from a regional 911 call center, or is it the Government’s intent that the Contractor shall staff a dispatch 911 call center?

             Answer: No. See answer to Question a. above.

581.  Reference:   In the Cost Exhibits file (File 146923-SOL-001-024), the government provided a blank XLS template in Exhibits 2, 2A, and 9. These exhibits require additional copies of the template to complete the pricing information for all SOWs and base option periods.

          a. Question:  Does the government have a preference as to where the additional worksheets are placed?
              Answer:  Yes, for both Exhibit 2 and 2A there shall be separate tabs (worksheets) for each core SOW WBS per contract period (not contract year).  The Offerors need to fill-in the WBS No. in the blank at the top of the exhibit. See answer to Question 352.  

           b. Question:  Is the expectation to place multiple SOW WBSs exhibits under each respective worksheet tab, or is the expectation for a separate worksheet tab for each SOW WBS exhibit?”
         Answer:  See answer to Question a. above.

583.  The following question was received in referenced to previously posted Question No. 496 which reads as follows:

      496.  Question:  Will an OCI Mitigation Plan be required, as part of the proposal?


     Answer:  Yes, see answer to Question 455.b.”

New Question 583:

         Question:  Your answer that “Yes” an OCI Mitigation Plan is required “as part of the proposal” seems to contradict your referenced Question 455.b that specifies contractors” will be required to submit an Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan in accordance with Clause I.182 of the RFP 30 days after the effective date of the contract”.   Further, the OCI Mitigation Plan is mentioned several times in the solicitation. However, there is no requirement in any part of the solicitation to provide the OCI Mitigation Plan “as part of the proposal”. Clause F.6 establishes the plan is to be provided “30 Days After Effective Date of contract”. Attachment J.1 List of Attachments specifies it is “To be Submitted 30 DACED”. Section L, paragraph L.22(c)(9)specifies“…Offerors shall provide a preliminary analysis of possible organizational conflicts of interest that might flow from the award of this contract. Within 30 days after the contract effective date, the successful contractor shall submit for NASA approval a comprehensive Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan…” The solicitation seems to require a preliminary analysis of conflict of interest with the proposal, but does not require the entire plan to be submitted “as part of the proposal”.  Please clarify.  Are Offerors expected to submit an entire COI Mitigation Plan with the proposal as the answer indicates or a preliminary analysis as the RFP indicates or both?

        Answer:  Per NFS 1837.203-70(c), because the successful WICC II Offeror will have access to sensitive information, Offerors are required to submit with their proposal a preliminary analysis of possible organizational conflicts of interest that might flow from the award of the contract.  Then, within 30 days after the contract effective date, the successful contractor shall submit for NASA approval a comprehensive Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan which will be incorporated into the contract under Clause J.1, Attachment J-10 – Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan. 

584. Reference: Cost Proposal Format Paragraph (b) Evaluated Overall IDIQ Task Order Values

Comment:  This paragraph has shown a Government estimate of the proportion of IDIQ task orders that may be issued. However, there have been numerous contractor questions concerning the anticipated level of task order work. The Government has noted in their answers “the Government wasn’t sure to the extent of the work.” The Government has also referred contractors to the library where one can find the history of TO work for the past three years. The history falls way short of the Government estimate in the referenced paragraph. The Government has specified the contractor to staff the management and administration (reference SOW 1.0) for IDIQ work.  Contractors need a baseline to staff management and administration in support of IDIQ/TO work. Please provide.

          Response:  We have provided a list of labor categories in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html. However, we have not provided a corresponding list of SOWs since they vary depending on the individual Offeror’s technical approach.   Also see answer to Question 540.  
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